



# SENATE MOTION

MR. PRESIDENT:

**I move** that Engrossed House Bill 1001 be amended to read as follows:

- 1 Page 105, between lines 4 and 5, begin a new paragraph and insert:
- 2 "SECTION 80. IC 7.1-4-2-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
- 3 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025]: Sec. 1. An excise tax,
- 4 referred to as the beer excise tax, at the rate of ~~eleven and one-half~~
- 5 ~~cents (\$1.15)~~ **twenty-three cents (\$0.23)** a gallon is imposed upon the
- 6 sale of beer or flavored malt beverage within Indiana.
- 7 SECTION 81. IC 7.1-4-3-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
- 8 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025]: Sec. 1. Rate of Tax. An
- 9 excise tax at the rate of ~~two dollars and sixty-eight cents (\$2.68)~~ **five**
- 10 **dollars and thirty-six cents (\$5.36)** a gallon is imposed upon the sale,
- 11 gift, or the withdrawal for sale or gift, of liquor and wine that contains
- 12 twenty-one percent (21%), or more, of absolute alcohol reckoned by
- 13 volume.
- 14 SECTION 82. IC 7.1-4-4-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
- 15 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025]: Sec. 1. An excise tax at the
- 16 rate of ~~forty-seven cents (\$0.47)~~ **ninety-four cents (\$0.94)** a gallon is
- 17 imposed upon the manufacture and sale or gift, or withdrawal for sale
- 18 or gift, of wine, except hard cider, within this state.
- 19 SECTION 83. IC 7.1-4-4.5-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
- 20 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025]: Sec. 1. An excise tax at the
- 21 rate of ~~eleven and one-half cents (\$0.115)~~ **twenty-three cents (\$0.23)**
- 22 a gallon is imposed upon the manufacture and sale or gift, or
- 23 withdrawal for sale or gift, of hard cider within Indiana.
- 24 SECTION 84. IC 7.1-4-7-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.165-2021,
- 25 SECTION 125, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
- 26 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025]: Sec. 5. **(a)** The department shall deposit:
- 27 (1) four cents (\$0.04) of the beer excise tax rate collected on each

gallon of beer or flavored malt beverage;

(2) one dollar (\$1) of the liquor excise tax rate collected on each gallon of liquor;

(3) twenty-five cents (\$0.25) of the wine excise tax rate collected on each gallon of wine;

(4) ~~the entire amount~~ **eleven and one-half cents (\$0.115)** of malt excise tax collected; and

(5) ~~the entire amount~~ **eleven and one-half cents (\$0.115)** of hard cider excise tax collected;

daily with the treasurer of state and not later than the fifth day of the following month shall cover them into the general fund of the state for distribution as provided in this chapter.

**(b) In addition to the deposits in subsection (a), the department shall deposit:**

**(1) eleven dollars and fifty cents (\$11.50) of the beer excise tax rate collected on each gallon of beer or flavored malt beverage;**

**(2) two dollars and sixty-seven cents (\$2.67) of the liquor excise tax rate collected on each gallon of liquor;**

**(3) forty-seven cents (\$0.47) of the wine excise tax rate collected on each gallon of wine;**

**(4) eleven and one-half cents (\$0.115) of malt excise tax collected; and**

**(5) eleven and one-half cents (\$0.115) of hard cider excise tax collected;**

**daily with the treasurer of state and not later than the fifth day of the following month shall transfer the money into the mental health initiatives fund established by IC 12-23-2.5-2."**

Page 115, between lines 7 and 8, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 109. IC 12-23-1-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.2-2007, SECTION 164, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025]: Sec. 6. The division has the following powers:

(1) Promoting unified programs for education and research, prevention and control, diagnosis, and treatment of substance and gambling abuse based on comprehensive plans developed by the division.

(2) Assuring compliance with state rules and federal regulations for substance abuse services programs and revoking authorization of the programs upon a determination that the programs do not comply with the rules and regulations.

(3) Making agreements and contracts with:

(A) another department, authority, or agency of the state;

(B) another state;

(C) the federal government;

(D) a state or private postsecondary educational institution; or

(E) a public or private agency;  
to effectuate the purposes of this article.

(4) Directly or by contract, approving and certifying facilities and services for the treatment, care, or rehabilitation of alcoholics, drug abusers, and compulsive gamblers in accordance with requirements established by the division and assigning or transferring individuals placed under the division's care or supervision to the facilities.

(5) Requiring, as a condition of operation, that each public and private treatment facility, except facilities and services created and funded under IC 12-23-14 that do not provide treatment and rehabilitation services, be certified according to standards established by the division.

(6) Maintaining a toll free telephone line that the public may use to obtain counseling and information about programs that help individuals with drug, alcohol, and gambling problems.

**(7) Make grants from the mental health initiatives fund to facilities or other entities for the purpose of funding mental health initiatives under the division.**

~~(7)~~ (8) Adopting rules under IC 4-22-2 to implement this article.

SECTION 6. IC 12-23-2.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW CHAPTER TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2025]:

**Chapter 2.5. Mental Health Initiatives Fund**

**Sec. 1. As used in this chapter, "fund" refers to the mental health initiatives fund established by section 2 of this chapter.**

**Sec. 2. The mental health initiatives fund is established for the deposit of excise taxes on alcoholic beverages under IC 7.1-4-7-5(b). The division shall administer the fund.**

**Sec. 3. The money in the fund does not revert to the state general fund at the close of a state fiscal year.**

**Sec. 4. The treasurer of state may invest the money in the fund in the manner provided by law for investing money in the state general fund.**

**Sec. 5. Money in the fund may be used by the division for the purpose of funding mental health initiatives under the division."**

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to EHB 1001 as printed April 11, 2025.)

---

Senator QADDOURA